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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the members of 
M/s. Epic Energy Limited 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of M/s. Epic Energy Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2022, and Loss for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial 
statements. 
 
Emphasis of matter: 
1. Revenue from Operations includes Unbilled Revenue from April 2021 to March 2022 amounting to Rs. 
54.93 lakhs. 
2. The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.63 lakhs relating to 
Financial Years 2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF). 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters         
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. Depending on the facts and circumstances of the entity and the Audit, there 
are no key audit matters to communicate in the Audit Report. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS  financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance(including the other comprehensive income), 
cash flows and Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Relevant Rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
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and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

•Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 
•Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
Procedures that is appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 
•Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
•Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that   may   cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 
•Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
•Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
1. As required by the companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the order’) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the 
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 
 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 
 
(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;  
 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant Rules issued there under.  
 
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and 
 
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 of the Act; 
 
(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in  accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as   amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 
 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 
 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 
 
iii. The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.63 lakhs relating to 

Financial Years 2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF). 
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iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 

 
(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 
 

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 
 
 

 
 

For PCN & Associates,   

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 016016S 

 
K Gopala Krishna  

Partner 

Membership No. 203605 

 
   Place: Hyderabad 
  Date:  28-05-2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UDIN: 22203605AKFCTE3170
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of M/s. Epic Energy Limited on the Ind 
AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022, we report that: 
 

i. (a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment. 
 
(ii) The Company does not have any intangible Asset. 
 
(b)As explained to us and in our opinion, Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the 
management at regular intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. 

 
(c) The company does not have any immovable property.  
 
(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 
 
(e) ) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during 
the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 
 

ii. (a) According to the information given to us and in our opinion, inventories were physically verified during 
the year by the management at reasonable intervals. The coverage and procedure of such verification by 
the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. 
No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such 
physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5crore, in aggregate from the banks on the basis of security of current 
assets. 
 

iii. The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and Limited Liability partnerships 
or other parties. 

 
(a) The Company has not provided any loans or provided advances in the nature loans, or stood guarantee, or 

provided security to any other entity. 
 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not provided 
any loans, investments, guarantees and securities in regards to section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

 
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.  

 
vi.The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company 
examined by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Professional Tax, Customs Duty, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, in arrears as at 
31st March 2022 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable except there are dues of 
income tax of amounts of Rs.128.17 lakhs being the aggregate of Income Tax demands for the Assessment 2009-
10, 2010-11, 2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined 
by us, there are no dues of Income Tax and any other major statutory dues which have not been deposited on 
account of any disputes. 
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viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined 
by us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

 
ix. a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not obtained 

any loans from banks or financial institutions. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or others. 

 
c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books 
of the company, the company has not obtained any money by way of term loans during the year. 

 
d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the company has not raised any 
funds on short-term basis during the year. 
 
e) The company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence, reporting 
under clause 3 (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
f) The company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence, reporting 
under clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
x. a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year. 

 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures 
(fully or partially or optionally  convertible) during the year. 
 

xi. a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year. 
 
b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during 
the year and up to the date of this report. 
 
c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the 
company during the year. 
 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
 

xiii. The Company has no transactions with related parties during the year to which the provisions of section188 
applies and the company has complied with the provisions of sec 177 of the act. However, the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the IND AS financial statements as required under Indian Accounting 
standard (Ind AS) 24, related party disclosures specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules 
issued there under. 
 

xiv. a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the 
nature of its business. 
 
 b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the 
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 
 

xv. According to information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the 
directors  
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xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.  
 
(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid 
Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
 
(c)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India.  
 
d) In our opinion, there is no Core Investment Companies (“CIC”s) in the Group (as defined in Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) that are registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). 
 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 27.75 Lakhs during the financial year covered by our audit and Rs. 
48.03 lakhs during the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes usto believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 

xx. In our opinion and according to the information, the Company is not covered under the provisions of Section 
135 of the Act. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

For PCN & Associates,   

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 016016S 

 
K Gopala Krishna  

Partner 

Membership No. 203605 

 
  Place: Hyderabad 
  Date:  28-05-2022  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UDIN: 22203605AKFCTE3170
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Epic Energy Limited (‘the 
Company’) as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including Indian Accounting Standards. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Page-49



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

 
For PCN & Associates,   

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 016016S 

 
K Gopala Krishna  

Partner 

Membership No. 203605 

 
  Place: Hyderabad 
  Date:  28-05-2022  
 

 
 

UDIN: 22203605AKFCTE3170
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ASSETS Note No
 As at 

31 March 2022 
As at 

31 March 2021
1 Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 2 191.53                                 211.92                                 
Capital WIP -                                        -                                        

Financial Assets

       Investments -                                        -                                        

       Other financial assets 3 6.39                                      8.89                                      

Deferred tax assets (net) 4 6.33                                      2.27                                      

Other non-current assets 8 455.41                                 460.90                                 

2 Current assets 
Inventories 22.57                                   25.81                                   
Financial assets
 - Investments -                                        -                                        
 - Trade receivables 5 140.91                                 118.03                                 
 - Cash and cash equivalents 6 0.76                                      0.98                                      
 - Bank balances other than above 7 6.63                                      5.09                                      
Other current assets 8 42.68                                   71.51

TOTAL ASSETS 873.21                                 905.40

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Equity

Equity Share capital 9 721.15                                 721.15                                 
Other equity (40.05)                                  4.42                                      

2 Non-current liabilities -                                        -                                        

3 Current liabilities 
 Financial liabilities -                                        -                                        
 - Trade Payables
        Dues of small enterprises and micro enterprises
       Dues of creditors other than small enterprises and micro enterprises 10 11.86                                   8.77                                      
 Provisions 11 128.17                                 128.17                                 
Other current liabilities 12 52.08                                   42.89                                   

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 873.21                                 905.40
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies                                        
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date annexed
For PCN & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Regn. No. 016016S

K Gopala Krishna Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza
Partner Director Director
M.No.203605, DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486

Udin:22203605AKFCTE3170

Date: 28th May, 2022 Sanjay Gugale Veena Morsawala
Place: Hyderabad Director Director

DIN: 03049713 DIN: 01310075
Company Secretary, Sandipkumar Gupta

Place: Navi Mumbai

Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED

All the amounts are Rs. In lakhs except "No of Shares", "F.V of Equity share", & "EPS"
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Sanjay Gugale Veena Morsawala
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Company Secretary, Sandipkumar Gupta

Place: Navi Mumbai



-                                           

Particulars Note No
 For the Year ended  March 

2022 
 For the Year ended  March 

2021 

Revenue from operations 13 136.88                                     142.93                                     
Other income 14 3.20                                         1.32                                         

Total Income                                       140.08                                       144.25 

Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 56.79                                       81.05                                       
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade 15 3.24                                         3.98                                         
Employee benefits expense (Including Outsourcing Expenses) 16 73.00                                       67.49                                       
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 20.78                                       18.09                                       
Other expenses 17 34.80                                       39.76                                       

Total expenses                                       188.61                                       210.37 

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax                                       (48.53)                                       (66.12)
Exceptional Items -                                           -                                           
Profit/ (loss) before tax (48.53)                                      (66.12)                                      
Tax expense
 - Current Tax -                                           -                                           
 - Deferred Tax 4.06                                         2.27                                         
Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing operations                                       (44.47)                                       (63.85)
Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations -                                           -                                           

Tax expense of discontinued operations -                                           -                                           

Profit/ (loss) from discounting operations (after tax) -                                           -                                           

Profit/ (loss) for the period                                       (44.47)                                       (63.85)
Other comprehensive income

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                                           -                                           

(ii) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                                           -                                           

B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                           -                                           

(ii)Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and 
Loss

-                                           -                                           

 Total Comprehensive Income for the period Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other 
comprehensive Income for the period                                       (44.47)                                       (63.85)

 (Profit/ loss + other comprehensive income)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)

a) Basic (0.62)                                        (0.89)                                        

b) Diluted (0.62)                                        (0.89)                                        

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date annexed
For PCN & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 016016S

K Gopala Krishna Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza
Partner Director Director

M.No.203605 DIN:00271878 DIN: 02176486

Udin:22203605AKFCTE3170

Date: 28th May, 2022 Sanjay Gugale Veena Morsawala

Place: Hyderabad Director Director
DIN:03049713 DIN: 01310075

Place: Navi Mumbai

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2022

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED

All the amounts are Rs. In lakhs except "No of Shares", "F.V of Equity share", & "EPS"

                       Company Secretary, Sandipkumar Gupta

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit before Tax                                    (48.53)                                              (66.12)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation                                      20.78                                                18.09 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes                                    (27.75)                                              (48.03)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                                        3.24                                                  3.98 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables                                    (22.88)                                              (30.90)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets and Loans and Advances                                      28.83                                                36.45 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets                                        2.50                                                  5.25 
(Increase)/Decrease in Current financial assets                                       (1.54)
(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Tax Assets                                       (4.06)                                                 (2.27)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non current assets                                        5.49                                                11.01 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables                                        3.09                                                  2.45 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities                                        9.19                                              (11.61)

Cash from operating activities                                       (3.89)                                              (33.67)

Income tax paid                                             -                                                   (3.05)
Deferred Tax                                        4.06                                                  2.27 
Net Cash from operating activities                                        0.17                                              (34.45)

(Additions)/Dilution of Fixed Assets                                       (0.39)                                                 (0.58)
(Additions)/Dilution of Investments                                             -                                                  35.00 

Net Cash used in investing activities                                       (0.39)                                                34.42 

Fresh Equity Capital Issued                                             -                                                         -   
Premium on Fresh Equity issued                                             -                                                         -   
Movement in Working Capital Borrowing                                             -                                                         -   
Long term borrowings                                             -                                                         -   
Repayment of long term borrowings                                             -                                                         -   
Interest and other Financial Charges                                             -                                                         -   

Cash from Financing activities                                             -                                                         -   

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS ( A+B+C)                                       (0.22)                                                 (0.03)
Cash and Cash equivalents (Opening Balance)                                        0.98                                                  1.01 
Cash and Cash equivalents (Closing Balance)                                        0.76                                                  0.98 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cheques on hand                                        0.39                                                  0.52 
Bank Balances                                        0.37                                                  0.46 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as above                                        0.76                                                  0.98 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note No.8                                        0.76                                                  0.98 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date annexed

For PCN & Associates,
For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 016016S

K Gopala Krishna
Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza

Partner
Director Director

M.No.203605
DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486

Udin:22203605AKFCTE3170

Date: 28th May, 2022
Sanjay Gugale Veena Morsawala

Place: Hyderabad
Director Director
DIN: 03049713 DIN: 01310075

Company Secretary, Sandipkumar Gupta
Place: Navi Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Adjustments for:

B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Flow Sattement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Particulars  31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 

All the amounts are Rs. In lakhs except "No of Shares", "F.V of Equity share", & "EPS"
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Note 1 
 
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
The Company offers comprehensive Energy Management Solutions to its Customers. Power saving Solutions 
includes Power Saver, APFC Panels, Remote Energy Management Software and Automatic Light Controllers etc. 
Renewable Energy Solution includes Solar Products, UPS, Inverters, etc. The Financial Statements were approved 
and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 28th May 2022. 
 
2.1. BASIS OF PREPRATION 
 
a. Statement of Compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as 
“Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time. The Board of Directors approved the financial statements for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022 and authorised for issue on 28th May, 2022 

(b) Functional and presentation Currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. 
All amounts are rounded to nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated. 
 
(c) Basis of measurement  
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise stated. All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current generally 
based on the criteria of realisation/settlement within a twelve month period from the balance sheet date. 
 
(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgments  
In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the management of the Company are required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.  
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed 
information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information 
about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. 
 
The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:  
Estimation of useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment  
Estimation of employee benefit obligations Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact 
on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
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(e) Recent Accounting Developments  
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below: 
 
Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework  
The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual 
Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the 
requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 
 
Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use  
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment 
amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. 
Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not 
expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial 
statements. Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract. The amendments specify that that the 
‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a 
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or 
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification 
and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 
 
Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)  
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in 
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements. The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of 
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease 
incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does 
not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

2.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost is inclusive of freight, duties, 
levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to their present working condition. When significant 
parts of property, plant and equipments are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognises the 
replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognisation criteria is satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria 
for a provision are met. Capital wok-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipments under installation 
/ development as at the balance sheet date. Property, plant and equipments are eliminated from financial 
statement, either on disposal or when retired from financial statement, either on disposal or retired from active 
use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and equipments and gains or losses arising from 
disposal of property, plant and equipments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of 
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occurrence. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial 
year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on the basis and 
manner provided in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. In respect of Energy Saving Equipments offered on 
BOOT basis, depreciation is written off over BOOT period. Property, plant and equipments which are 
added/disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of 
addition/ deletion. 
 
b. Impairment 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash –generating unit’s (CGU) net 
selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset 
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken 
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. An 
assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment 
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 
 
c. Revenue Recognition 
I) Sale of Goods  
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have passed to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will 
be derived from the sale of goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, related discounts & incentives and volume 
rebates. It excludes GST and other statutory dues from revenue. 
 
Sale of Services  
Revenue from services are recognized when the services are rendered and the same becomes chargeable. GST and 
other statutory dues are collected on behalf of the government and are excluded from revenue. 

II) Interest Income 
Interest income is recognised in books of accounts on accrual basis. 
 
d. Financial Instruments: 
Financial assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of financial assets which are 
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL, its transaction costs are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. 
 
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at amortised cost 
. fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 
. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
Financial assets are not classified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period of the company 
change its business model for managing financial assets. 
 
Trade Receivables: 
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts 
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estimated credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life 
of financial instruments. 
 
Debt instruments 
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(‘FVOCI’) or fair value to profit and loss (‘FVTPL’) till recognition on the basis of (i) the entity’s business model for 
managing the financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 
 
Measured at amortised cost 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any .The amortisation of EIR and loss arising 
from impairment, if any is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets 
and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of payments of principal and interest, are 
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognised 
in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, 
if any are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI in reclassified from the equity to “other income” in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Measured at fair value through profit and loss 
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are 
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, 
recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of profit and loss. 
 
Equity Instruments 
All investment in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the 
company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI and FVTPL. The 
company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A fair value change on an equity instrument 
is recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss unless the company has elected to measure such 
instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are 
recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of profit and loss. 
Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the statement of 
profit and loss. 
 
Derecognition 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from financial assets 
expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. 
 
Impairment of Financial Asset 
Expected credit losses are recognised for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financial 
assets in FVTPL category. For financial asset other than trade receivables, as per IND AS 109, The Company 
recognises 12 months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date 
the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The Company’s trade 
receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at 
an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
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Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are 
classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value 
and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried 
at fair value through profit and loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the 
statement of Profit and loss. 
 
Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 
 
e. Other Employee Benefits 
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as Short-
term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, performance incentives and Compensated 
absences which are expected to occur in next twelve months. 
 
f. Income Tax 
Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 
is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically 
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities 
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when it is probable that the temporary differences will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred 
tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date.  
 
Deferred tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are disclosed 
separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 
 
 
 

Financial Liabilities: 
Initial recognition and measurement 
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g. Earnings per share 
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit 
and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 
h. Provisions  
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and 
are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

(i) Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
 
j. Contingent assets 
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 
 
k. Foreign currency transactions 
In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are 
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates 
prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and 
measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such 
values were determined. All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except any 
exchange differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the currency risk of 
designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income. 
 
l. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  
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A. Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting period

Balance as at April 1, 2021
Restated balance as 
at April 1, 2021

Changes in equity share 
capital during the current 
year

Balance as at March 
31, 2022

721.15 721.15 -                                          721.15 -                                         

(2) Previous reporting period

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Restated balance as 
at April 1, 2020

Changes in equity share 
capital during the previous 
year

Balance as at March 
31, 2021

721.15 721.15 -                                          721.15

B. Other Equity
(1) Current reporting period

General reserve
Securities premium 

reserve
Retained earnings

Balance at the March 31, 2021 80.34 281.00 (356.92) 4.42
Changes in accounting policy or prior 
period errors

                                -                                                -                                       -   - 

Restated balance at the beginning of 
the current reporting period

                                -                                                -                               (44.47) (44.47)

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
period  

80.34 281.00 (401.39) (40.05)

Dividends - - - 
Transfer to retained earnings - - - 
Any other change (to be specified) - - - 
Balance at the March 31, 2022 80.34 281.00 (401.39) (40.05)

(2) Previous reporting period

General reserve
Securities premium 

reserve
Retained earnings

Balance at the March 31, 2020 80.34 281.00 (293.07) 68.27
Changes in accounting policy or prior 
period errors

                                -                                                -                                       -   - 

Restated balance at the beginning of 
the current reporting period

                                -                                                -                               (63.85) (63.85)

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
period  

80.34 281.00 (356.92) 4.42

Dividends - - - 
Transfer to retained earnings - - - 
Any other change (to be specified) - - - 
Balance at the March 31, 2021 80.34 281.00 (356.92) 4.42

All the amounts are Rs. In lakhs except "No of Shares", "F.V of Equity share", & "EPS"

Particulars

Reserves And Surplus

Total

Particulars
Reserves And Surplus

Total
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2)Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All the amounts are Rs. In lakhs except "No of Shares", "F.V of Equity share", & "EPS"

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment are as follows

Property, Plant and Equipment 
 Energy Saving 

Equipment 
 Computers 

 Furniture and 
Fixtures 

 Office 
equipment 

 Total  

Cost
As at March 31, 2020 2,202.80                   6.15                    31.40                   11.87                2,252.22              
Additions -                             0.33                    -                       0.24                   0.57                      
Disposals -                             -                      -                        -                     -                        
As at March 31, 2021 2,202.80                   6.48                    31.40                   12.11                2,252.79              
Additions -                             -                      0.39                      -                     0.39                      
Disposals -                             -                      -                        -                     -                        
As at March 31, 2022 2,202.80                   6.48                    31.79                   12.11                2,253.18              

Depreciation
As at March 31, 2020 1,987.99                   6.15                    18.97                   9.67                  2,022.78              
Charge for the period 16.46                         0.02                    1.18                      0.43                   18.09                   
Disposals -                             -                      -                       -                    -                       
As at March 31, 2021 2,004.45                   6.17                    20.15                   10.10                2,040.87              
Charge for the period 16.46                         0.10                    2.99                      1.23                   20.78                   
Disposals -                             -                      -                        -                     -                        
As at March 31, 2022 2,020.91                   6.27                    23.14                   11.33                2,061.65              

Net Block
As at March 31, 2022 181.89                       0.21                    8.65                     0.78                  191.53                 
As at March 31, 2021 198.35                       0.31                    11.25                   2.01                   211.92                 
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Note No 3: Other Financial Assets

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non- Current
Security Deposits 6.39                                8.89
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity -                                  -                                   
Others (to be specified) -                                  -                                   
Total non-current other financial assets 6.39                               8.89                                 

Note No 4: Deferred Tax Asset
Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening DTA 2.27 -                                   
Credit to P & L 4.06 2.27
Closing DTA 6.33 2.27
Total 6.33 2.27                                 

Note No 5: Trade Receivables

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 85.98                              118.03
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss -                                  -                                   

Unbilled Revenue 54.93                             -                                   

Total Current Trade Receivables 140.91                           118.03                            

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:
As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars

Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 25.97                             24.37                               34.12                              -                        1.53                                85.98                         
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase in 
credit risk

-                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase in credit 
risk

-                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             

Unbilled revenue 54.93                         

Total Trade Receivables 25.97                             24.37                               34.12                              -                        1.53                               140.91                      

As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars

Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 56.84                             -                                   -                                   -                        61.19                             118.03                      
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase in 
credit risk

-                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase in credit 
risk

-                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  -                             

Total Trade Receivables 56.84                             -                                   -                                   -                        61.19                             118.03                      

Note No 6: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents); 0.37                                0.46                                 
Cheques, drafts on hand; -                                  -                                   
Cash on hand; 0.39                                0.52                                 
Others (specify nature) -                                  -                                   
Total Cash and cash equivalents 0.76                               0.98                                 

Note No 7: Other Bank Balances

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Unpaid Dividend 6.63 5.09

As at

As at

As at

All the amounts are Rs. In lakhs except "No of Shares", "F.V of Equity share", & "EPS"

As at

As at

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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Total Other Bank Balances 6.63 5.09                                 

Note No 8: Other assets

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-current
Advances other than capital advances
(a) Advance against supply of goods & services 451.15                           449.51                            
(b) Other Loans & Advances -                                  5.00                                 
(c) Misc Exps not W/Off 4.26                                6.38                                 
Total non-current other assets 455.41                           460.89                            

Current
(a) Advance to suppliers 29.05                             -                                   
(b) Tax deducted at source 4.25 2.32
(c) Advance-Others 9.38 69.19
Total Current other assets 42.68                             71.51                               

Note No 9: Equity Share Capital

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Authorized
1,20,00,000 Equity Shares of  Rs.10  each 1,200.00                        1,200.00                         

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
72,11,500 Equity Shares of  Rs.10  each 721.15                           721.15                            

The Company has only one classs of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one Vote per Share.
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to recevie the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

Details of shareholding of promoters as at 31st March 2022 is as follows:

Promoter name No. of shares % of total shares
% Change during the 
year

Mrs. Veena Nikhil Morsawala 840100 11.65 -                                   
Mr. Nikhil Champaklal Morsawala 837965 11.62 -                                   

Promoter name No. of shares % of total shares
% Change during the 
year

Mr. Behram Mehta 1000000 13.87 -                                   
Mr. Chandrashekhar Lad 692288 9.6 -                                   

Particulars
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

As at the beginning of the period 7211500 721.15 7211500 721.15
As at the end of the period 7211500 721.15 7,211,500.00                721.15                  

Note No 10: Trade Payables

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

11.86 8.77

Total trade payables 11.86                             8.77                                 

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:
As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 
years

Total

(i) MSME -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  
(ii) Others 3.09 3.00                                 1.56 4.21                      11.86                             
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  
(iv)Disputed dues - Others -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  

3.09                                3.00                                 1.56                                4.21                      11.86                             

As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars

As at

As at

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is set out below:

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company   

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

Note: The company has transferred unclaimed dividend of Rs. 1.54 lakhs last year which was under process to be 
transferred to IEPF  but due to covid and other technical issues the same could not be transferred,Hence the same has 
been added back to unpaid dividend in the books during the year.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at March 31, 2021As at March 31, 2022

As at
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Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 
years

Total

(i) MSME -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  
(ii) Others 3.00                                1.56                                 0.40                                3.81                      8.77                               
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  
(iv)Disputed dues - Others -                                  -                                   -                                   -                        -                                  

3.00                                1.56                                 0.40                                3.81                      8.77                               

Note No 11: Provisions

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Short term provisions
Tax payable 128.17 128.17
Total 128.17 128.17                            

Note No 12: Other liabilities

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Statutory dues 6.82 2.52
Other payables 45.26 41.91

Total current other liabilities 52.08 44.43                               

As at

As at
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Particulars  As At 31st March 2022  As At 31st March 2021 
Note-13)  Revenue from operations

Energy Solution Division 136.88                                         142.93                                      

Total 136.88                                         142.93                                      

 As At 31st March 2022  As At 31st March 2021 
Note-14)  Other Income

Other Income 3.20                                              1.20                                           
Income Tax Refund                                                    -                                              0.12 
Total 3.20                                             1.32                                           

Particulars  As At 31st March 2022  As At 31st March 2021 
Note-15)  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-
in-progress and stock-in-trade

Opening Stock                                             25.81                                          29.79 
Less:- Closing Stock                                             22.57                                          25.81 
Total changes in inventories of finished goods and work in 
progress

3.24                                             3.98                                           

Particulars  As At 31st March 2022  As At 31st March 2021 
Note-16)  Employee benefits expense

Employee/ Manpower Expenses (including outsoucing 
exps)

66.18                                           63.71                                        

Staff welfare expenses                                               6.82                                            3.78 

Total 73.00                                           67.49                                        

Particulars  As At 31st March 2022  As At 31st March 2021 
Note-17)  Other expenses

Power & Fuel 2.38                                              2.13                                           
Audit Fees 1.50                                              1.50                                           
Legal & Professional Fees 1.77                                              5.53                                           
Telephone & Internet Charges 1.87                                              1.82                                           
Travelling Expense 1.32                                              1.35                                           
Business Promotion 1.25                                              1.04                                           
Rent 8.47                                              9.10                                           
Miscellaneous Expense 16.13                                           17.15                                        
Bank charges 0.11                                              0.14                                           
Total 34.80                                           39.76                                        

All the amounts are Rs. In lakhs except "No of Shares", "F.V of Equity share", & "EPS"
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 
 
18) Earnings per share (EPS) 
 

Particulars  2021-22 2020-21 

Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
₹ in    
lakh (44.47) (63.85) 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 
EPS Nos. 72,11,500 72,11,500 
Nominal value of each share ₹ 10 10 
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share ₹ (0.62) (0.89) 

 
19) DIVIDEND 
Board of directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 
20) GRATUITY PLAN  
The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. 
 
21) As per information and records available with the Company, there are no reportable amounts of dues on 
account of principal and interest or any such payments during the year as required by Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, in respect of Micro Enterprises and small Enterprises as defined 
in the Act. As a result no disclosure in this respect is made in the Financial Statements. 
 
22) SEGMENT INFORMATION 
The Company’s business activity falls within a two reportable segments VIZ. Power conditioners & savers and 
Renewable Energy and energy saving appliances. Hence, additional disclosures other than those already made 
in the financial statements are required under IND AS “Operating Segments”. Segments have been identified 
and reported taking into account nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the 
internal business reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the 
accounting policy of the company with following additional policies for segment reporting. Revenue and 
expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. 
Revenue and expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable 
basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”. 
 
Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax 
related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have 
been disclosed as “Unallocable”. 

         ₹ in lakh 

Particulars     Year Ended     Previous Year ended  

  31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
  Audited Audited 
SEGMENT REVENUE 
Gross Income from Operations     
1) Power Saving Solutions                        136.88                         142.93  
2) Renewable Energy Solutions                                -                                   -    
3) Unallocated                            3.20                             1.32  
Total                         140.08                         144.25  
Segment Result before Tax and Interest     
1) Power Saving Solutions                        (51.83)                        (67.44) 
2) Renewable Energy Solutions                                -                                   -    
3) Unallocated                            3.20                             1.32  
Total Profit before Tax                        (48.63)                        (66.12) 
Segment Capital Employed     
1) Power Saving Solutions                        489.06                         536.73  
2) Renewable Energy Solutions                        137.76                         137.76  
3) Unallocated                          54.28                           51.08  
Total Segment Capital Employed                        681.10                         725.57  
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23)  CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES        ₹ in lakh 
   
Particulars As at As at 
 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining   
to be executed on capital contract and   
not provided for (Net of Advances)              -              - 
Contingent Liabilities              -              - 
 
24) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

a) Names of related parties:  

Key Management Personnel 

 
 Mr. Bharat Mehta-Director 

 

 

 Mr. Brian Dsouza-Director 
 

 Mr. Sanjay Gugale- Director 
 

 Mrs. Veena Morsawala- Director 
 

 Mr. Nikhil Morsawala- CFO 
 

 Mr. Sandipkumar Gupta- Company 
                   Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 
 Mr. Atul Mishra- Manager 

  Relatives of Key Management Personnel - 
Enterprise owned or significantly influenced by key
Management Personnel or their relatives - 

 
b) Particulars of Transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2022: 
Nature of Transactions Key Management Personnel Associate / Enterprise where 

 (INR in lakhs) Control exists (INR in lakhs)     
Remuneration  13. 85  -     
Balance outstanding at the year end 
– Receivable -  - 
Balance outstanding at the year end 
– Payable 7.68 (As on 31/03/2022) - 
 9.46 (As on 31/03/2021)  

 
25) FAIR VALUE 
The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as at 31st March, 2022, is as follows: 
 

a) Fair Value of financial assets and financial liabilities:  
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 is as follows: 

     INR in lakh 
       

Particulars Fair Value Fair value Amortised Total  Total Fair 
 hierarchy through Cost Carrying  Value 

 Level Profit and  Value   
  Loss     

Assets:       
Cash and Cash Level 3 - 0.76 0.76  0.76 
Equivalents       
Other Bank Level 3 - 6.63 6.63  6.63 
Balances       
Trade Level 3 - 140.91 140.91  140.91 
Receivables       
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Investment- Level 3 - - -  - 
Share Application       
Money Pending       
Allotment       
Other Financial Level 3 - 6.39 6.39  6.39 
Assets       
Total  - 154.69 154.69  154.69 
Liabilities: Level 3 -     
Trade Payables Level 3 - 11.86 11.86  11.86 
Other Financial Level 3 - - -  - 
Liabilities       
Total  - 11.86 11.86  11.86 

 
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2021 is as follows:  

     INR in lakh 
       

Particulars Fair Value Fair value Amortised Total  Total Fair 
 hierarchy through Cost Carrying  Value 

 Level Profit and  Value   
  Loss     

Assets:       
Cash and Cash Level 3 - 0.98 0.98  0.98 
Equivalents       
Other Bank Level 3 - 5.09 5.09  5.09 
Balances       
Trade Level 3 - 118.03 118.03  118.03 
Receivables       
Investment- Level 3 - - -  - 
Share Application Level 3      
Money Pending       

Allotment       
Other Financial Level 3 - 8.89 8.89  8.89 
Assets       
Total  - 132.99 132.99  132.99 
Liabilities: Level 3 -     
Trade Payables Level 3 - 8.77 8.77  8.77 
Other Financial Level 3 - - -  - 
Liabilities       
Total  - 8.77 8.77  8.77 

 
b) Fair value hierarchy 
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that 
are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels: 

 
 Leverl-1 Inputs are prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or   liabilities. 

 

 Leverl-2 Inputs are other than prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) 

 

 Level-3 Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair value is 
determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither 
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor 
are they based on available market data. 
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C)  Valuation techniques and key inputs 

 
 Level-1- At present the company has no such financial assets or financial liabilities which are 

required to measure by this level of hierarchy. 
 

 Level-2- At present the company has no such financial assets or financial liabilities which are 
required to measure by this level of hierarchy. 

 

 Level-3- Investment in share application money, cost has been considered as an appropriate 
estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost 
represents the best estimate of fair value within that range. 

 
26) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables only. The main purpose of 
these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets 
include investments at fair value, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. 

 
The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk. The Company’s senior management monitors these 
risks and is supported by professional managers who advise on financial risks and assist in preparing the 
appropriate financial risk governance framework. It provides assurance to the senior management that the 
financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are 
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board 
of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:  

a) Market risk 
Market risks are the risk when the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
 

b) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or 
Customer Contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities (primarily trade receivables). The Company only deals with parties which has 
sound worthiness based on the internal assessment. 

 
27) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business 
continuity and support the growth. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual 
operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The Company is not subject to any 
externally imposed capital requirements. 
 
28) Revenue from Operations includes Unbilled Revenue from April 2021 to March 2022 amounting to Rs. 
54.93 Lakhs. 
 
29) The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.63 Lakhs relating to 
Financial Years 2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF). 
 
30) The company has not filed GST returns for the turnover of Rs.30 lakhs. 
 
31) ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION  

i. The Company does not have any immovable properties. 
 

ii. The company does not have any intangible assets under development. 
 

iii. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 
2022 for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder. 

 

iv. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹5 crores, in aggregate, at any 
points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

v. The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 
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vi. There were no charges or satisfaction which were yet to be registered with Roc beyond the statutory 

period. 
 

vii. Ratios Analysis: 
Particulars Numerator Denominator 2021-22 2020-21 Variance Reason of 
      Variance 

      
(If more than 

25%) 
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.11 1.23 (9.76%) Change less than 
(in times)      25%. 
Return on Equity Net Profit after Average (6.32%) (8.43%) (25.03%) Primarily due to 
(in %) taxes Shareholder's Equity    decrease in sales 
Trade Net Credit Sales Average Trade 1.06 1.39 (23.74%) Changes less 
Receivables  Receivables    than 
turnover ratio      25% 
(in times)       
Trade Payables Net Credit Average Trade 5.82 11.27 (48.36%) Primarily due to 
turnover ratio Purchases Payables    bad cash flows 
(in times)       

Net Capital Net Sales Working Capital 6.38 3.44 85.47% 

Primarily due to 
high”working 
capital 

turnover ratio       
(in times)       
Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after Net Sales (32.49%) (44.67%) (27.27%) Primarily due to 
(in %) Taxes     decrease in sales 
Return on capital Earnings Before Capital Employed (7.13%) (9.11%) (21.73%) Change less than 
employed (in %) Interest and taxes     25%. 
 Note: Debt-Equity, Debt Service Coverage and Return on Investment (ROI) are not applicable to the company. 
 

viii. (A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary 
shall: 
 
 

(i)”Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
 
 

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 
 

(B) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall : 
 
 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or  
 
 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  
ix. Undisclosed income: 
There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as 
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 
 

(x) The Company does not come under the requirements of section 135 of the Act.  
32) PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES 
Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary to confirm to the year’s 
classification 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 

As per our Report annexed On behalf of the Board of Directors 
  
For   P C N & Associates,             
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 016016S 

Bharat Mehta                Brian Dsouza                 
Director                         Director 
DIN: 00271878              DIN: 02176486 
  
Sanjay Gugale              Veena Morsawala 
Director                          Director  
DIN: 03049713              DIN: 01310075       

K. Gopala Krishna         
 Partner 
M No: 203605  
UDIN: 22203605AKFCTE3170 

Place: Navi Mumbai 
Date:28.05.2022 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 28-05-2022   
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Notice   

 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Epic Energy 
Limited will be held on Saturday, 24th September, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. Through Video 
Conferencing via CDSL VC/VOAM facility, to transact the following business: 

 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 

March, 2022 comprising of the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 and 
statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date 
together with Report of Directors’ and Auditors' thereon. 

 
 

2. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with rules thereunder, Mrs. Veena Morsawala (DIN: 01310075), who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers herself for appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Non-
Executive Director of the Company. 
 

 
              3. To ratification for re-appointment of Statutory Auditor and to fix their remuneration and 

in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. The auditors M/s. P C N & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, (FRN. 016016S) are showing willingness to re-appoint as an 
Auditor of the Company: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made there under, M/s. P C N 
& Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN. 016016S), be and are hereby re-appointed as 
Statutory auditor of the company who shall hold the office as statutory auditor till the 
conclusion of Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2025 on such 
remuneration as may be decided by the Board.” 

 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors  
Epic Energy Limited 

 
 
         Sd/- 

Sandipkumar Gupta  
Company Secretary 

 
Place: Navi Mumbai  
Date:  12th August, 2022 
 
 
 



 
NOTES 
 
1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has 

vide its circular dated 5th May, 2020 read with circular dated 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 
2020 (collectively referred to as (“MCA circular”) permitted the holding of the Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVN, without the physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Obligations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / 
OAVM. 
 

2. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business to be 
transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto. 

 
3. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the 
Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, 
physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy 
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto. 

 
4. Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is 

not annexed hereto. 
 

5. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mrs. Veena Morsawala, Director of the 
Company, retire by rotation at the Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 

 
6. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 

Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India, in respect of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at this Meeting are provided 
in the “Annexure” to the Notice. 

 
7. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders(i.e. other than individuals / HUF,NRI, etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization 
etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to 
vote through remote e-voting. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizers 
by email through its registered email address with a copy marked to the Company. 

 
8. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies 

can be transferred only in dematerialized from with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case of 
request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate 
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized 
form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Adroit 
Corporate Services Pvt.Ltd. for assistance in this regard. 

 
9. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register of the Company will remain closed from 

Saturday 17th September, 2022 to Saturday 24th September, 2022 (both days inclusive). 
 
 



 
10. The Members are requested to:  

 
i) Intimate immediately any change in their address to Company’s Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agents M/s. Adroit Corporate Services Pvt.Ltd.., 17-21, Jafferbhoy Ind. Estate, 
1st Floor, Makhwana  Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059. Members 
holding shares in the electronic form are advised to inform change in address directly to 
their respective depository participants. 
  

ii) Quote their Folio No. /Client ID No. in their correspondence with the Company/ 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.  

 
iii)  Send their queries at least 10 days in advance so that the required information can be 

made available at the meeting.  
 

iv) Intimate Registrar and Share Transfer Agents M/s. Adroit Corporate Services Pvt.Ltd. 
for consolidation of their folios, in case they are having more than one folio. 

 
11. To support the “Green Initiative for Paperless Communications” Members who have not yet 

registered their email ids are requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are 
held in electronic form and with Company’s RTA in case the shares are held in physical form. 
 

12. In case of joint holders, the Members whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

 
13. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12th May, 2020, 

Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic 
mode to those Members whose email address are registered with Company/Depositories. 
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available on the 
Company’s website Website of Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on 
the website of CDSL https://www.evotingindia.com/. 

 
14. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

15. The Company has engaged the services of the Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(“CDSL”) for facilitating remote e-voting for the said meeting to be held on Saturday, 24th 
September, 2022. The Shareholders are requested to follow the instructions mentioned in Note 
below. 

 
16. The voting by Shareholders through the remote e-voting shall commence at 9.00 a.m. on 

Tuesday, 20th September, 2022 and shall close at 5.00 p.m. on Friday 23rd September, 2022. 
During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on Friday, 16th September, 2022 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The remote 
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Those Members, who will be 
present in the Meeting through VC / OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the 
Resolution through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 
to vote through e-voting system during the Meeting. 

 



17. The Shareholders of the Company can opt only one mode for voting i.e. remote e-voting or e-
voting during the meeting. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by an equity shareholder, he or 
she will not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 
18. The Shareholders of the Company attending the Meeting, who have not cast their vote through 

remote e-voting shall be entitled to exercise their vote during the Meeting by VC/ OAVM. 
Equity shareholders who have cast their votes through remote e-voting may attend the Meeting 
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote during the Meeting. 

 
19. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the 

Member / beneficial owner as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 16th September, 2022. 
 

20. The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of beneficial owners as on 
the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 16th September, 2022 only shall be entitled to vote on the resolutions 
set out in this Notice. Any person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this 
Notice for information purposes only. 

 
21. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after 

emailing of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e Friday, 16th September, 2022, 
may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at email ID 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or RTA email ID e-Voting info@adroitcorporate.com 

 
22. However, if you are already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then you can use your 

existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset 
your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option available on 
https://www.evotingindia.com or contact at the following toll free no.: 1800225533. 

 
23. The Members can join the Meeting through VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice 
and the Company may close the window for joining the VC/OAVM Facility 15 minutes after the 
scheduled time to start the Meeting. The facility of participation at the Meeting through VC/ 
OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first serve basis. The large 
shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters, institutional 
investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, auditors, 
etc. can attend the Meeting without any restriction on account of first-come first-served 
principle. 

 
24. Any queries/ grievances in relation to the voting by e-voting may be addressed to the Company 

Secretary of the Company through email at info@epicenergy.biz, or may be addressed to CDSL 
at evotingindia.com 

 
25. The Board of Directors has appointed Vijaykumar Tiwari (Membership No. 33084, C.P. NO. 

12220) of Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the voting during the AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner. 

 
 
 
 

 



THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

 
1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general 

meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM will 
thus be held through through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM).  
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 
 
 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and 
MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at 
the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as 
well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 
 
 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 
the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available 
to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to 
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of 
Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as 
the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through 
VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company. The Notice can 
also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the 
website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during 
the AGM i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 
 

7. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA 
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 



8. In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and after 
due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due to be held in the 
year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on or before 31.12.2021, in 
accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 
20/2020 as per MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated January,13,2021. 
 

 
 
THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  

 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares 

in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  
 
 

(i) The voting period begins on at 9.00 a.m. on Tuesday, 20th September, 2022 and shall close at 5.00 
p.m. on Friday 23rd September, 2022. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date Friday, 16th 
September, 2022  may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 
(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 
 
(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility 
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that 
the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible 
level.  

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple 
user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the 
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process. 
 
 
 
 



Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  

 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 

e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users of who have opted for CDSL’sEasi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made available 
to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URLs for 
users to login to Easi / Easiest 
arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com 
and click on Login icon and select New System My easi. 

2) After successful login  theEasi / Easiest user will be  able to see the e-
Voting Menu. On clickingthee-voting menu, the user will be able to see 
his/her holdings along with links of the respective e-Voting service 
provider i.e. CDSL/NSDL/ KARVY/ LINK INTIME  as per information 
provided by Issuer / Company. Additionally, we are providing links to e-
Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ site directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at  https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in  www.cdslindia.com 
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP where the e-Voting is in progress during or before the AGM. 

 



 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
“Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility.  After successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider’s 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 
 



Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 
 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 
 
 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in 
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 
 
 
(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual 

shareholders & physical shareholders. 
 
 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
 

3) Now enter your User ID  
 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted 
on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and
Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 



 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
OR Date of 
Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 
field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

 
(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation 
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 
 
(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 
 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xvi) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting 



 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 

on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 

on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
info@epicenergy.biz, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-
voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERSATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. The procedure for attending meeting &e-Voting on the day of the AGM/EGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 
 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to 



meeting i.e. by 17th September 2022 mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to 
speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 3 days prior to 
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
info@epicenergy.biz These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the 
EGM/AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM 

and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, 
then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting 
during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES:  

 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to Company/RTA email id. 

 
2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respective Depository Participant (DP)  
 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. 
with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-
Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, 
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-
23058542/43. 

 
(xvii) All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 

Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 
 
 


